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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly,
Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited) (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024,
and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter — Recoverability of Trade Receivables

We draw attention to Note 13.1 to the accompanying financial statements, which describe an uncertainty to the
outcome of an ongoing litigation with a customer on recoverability of balance amounting to INR 2,929 lakhs due
from such customer, which is currently pending in the Commercial Court, Jaipur. The management based on
their internal evaluation and legal advice as obtained, is of the view that the aforesaid amount receivable is good
and recoverable and no liability is likely to arise on the aforesaid matter, and accordingly, no adjustments have
been made to the financial statements in this respect. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

5. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’'s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director's Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

6. The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

8. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the o ing effectiveness of such controls;
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the transition date opening balance
sheet as at 01 April 2022 prepared in accordance with Ind AS included in these financial statements, are based
on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
respectively prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 (as amended), which were audited by the predecessor
auditor, Manish Kumar Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants, whose reports dated 28 August 2023 and 11
August 2022, respectively expressed unmodified opinion on the financial statements for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022, respectively and have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS, which have been audited by us. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable
to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A; a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in paragraph 15(h)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164(2) of the Act; N

&
S
REQ 1\{:"\:0\\“\§

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with

limited liability with identification number
Offices in Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, D jun, Goa, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Indore, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, AAC-2085 and has ils registered office at L-
New Delhi, Moida and Pune 41, Connaught Circus, Outer Circle, New

Delhi, 110001, India



Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph 15(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 15(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed unmodified opinion; and

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

iv.a.

iv.b.

iv.c.

v.a.

v.b.

the Company, as detailed in Note 40(i) and Note 13.1 to the accompanying financial statements, has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2024;

the Company, as detailed in Note 24.1 to the accompanying financial statements, has made provision
as at 31 March 2024, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note
54 to the accompanying financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or i nvested
(either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note
53 to the accompanying financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

The final dividend paid by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 in respect of such
dividend declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to payment of dividend.

As stated in Note 44 to the accompanying financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company
have proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024, which is subject to the approval of
the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.
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vi.

As stated in Note 56 to the accompanying financial statements and based on our examination which
included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 01 April 2023, has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. The database of the same accounting software is managed by
a third-party service provider. In the absence of any information on existence of audit trail (edit log)
facility for any direct data changes made at the database level in the 'Independent Service Auditor's
Report on the Description of Controls their Design and Operating Effectiveness (‘'Type 2 report' issued
in accordance with ISAE 3402, Assurance Reports on Controls at a Service Organization), we are
unable to comment on whether audit trail feature with respect to the database of the said software
was enabled and operated throughout the year. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registratio

Rakesh R.

Partner

0.: 001076N/N500013

Membership No. 109632

UDIN: 24109632BKFBKR6459

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 August 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of
Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited) on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment, investment property and relevant details of right-of-use
assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment, investment property and relevant details of right-of-use assets have
been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by the
Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties including investment properties held by the Company
(other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favor of the lessee), as disclosed in Notes 4A and 4B to the accompanying financial statements, are
held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In respect of goods-in-transit, these have been
confirmed from corresponding receipt inventory records.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(b) As disclosed in Note 19 to the accompanying financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working

capital limit in excess of INR 500 lakhs by banks and financial institutions based on the security of current
assets. The quarterly returns/ statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the
Company with such banks and financial institutions and such returns/ statements are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were not subjected to audit/review, except
for the following:

(INR in lakhs)
Name of Working Nature Quarter Particulars Amount Amount Difference
the bank capital of ended of securities | disclosed | as per
limits current provided as per books of
sanctioned | assets return account
held as
security
Consortium | 13,000 All the June 2023 | Inventories
of banks current 4,730 4.407 323
assets of Trade
the receivables 46,296 44 890 1,406
Company | September | Inventories
2023 5410 4,962 448
Trade
receivables 40,691 40,424 267
December | Inventories
2023 5,666 5135 531
Trade
receivables 38,239 37,904 335
March Inventories
2024 5,112 5,073 40
Trade
receivables 64,904 61,637 3,267

(iil)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(jii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act, during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order
is not applicable.

(vii)(a) Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues

including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became able.
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(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-
clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute
except for the following:

Name of the Nature of | Gross Amoun | Period to Forum where dispute is
statute dues Amount | t paid which the pending
(INR in under amount
lakhs) Protest | relates
(INR in
lakhs)
The Income Tax | Income 397 78 AY 2016-17 Commissioner of Income tax
Act, 1961 Tax (Appeals)
3 o AY 2017-18 Commissioner of Income tax
(Appeals)
6 Nil AY 2018-19 Assistant Commissioner  of
Income tax
7 Nil AY 2021-22 Deputy Commissioner of Income
tax
2 Nil AY 2022-23 Assistant Commissioner of
Income tax
Goods & Service | Goods and 5,362 800 FY 2017-18 Commissioner, Central Goods
Tax Act, 2017 Service and Service Tax & Central
Tax Excise (Appeals), Thane
674 Nil FY 2018-19 to | CGST & Central Excise,
2020-21 Commissionerate, Indore

* Absolute amount less than INR 50,000.

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the
management of the Company and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not
been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any money by way of term loans during the year and there has been no utilisation during the
current year of the term loans obtained by the Company during any previous years. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term basis have, prima facie,
not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x) (8) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(©)

(xii)

(xiii)

As disclosed in Note 17(f) to the accompanying financial statements, during the year, the Company has made
private placement of equity shares. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the applicable requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the rules
framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further, the amounts so raised have been utilised by the Company
for the purposes for which these funds were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the
Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by the
Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, to the extent applicable. The
details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the
Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit

system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under the provisions of
section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period under

(xv)

(xvi)

audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the Company,

(xvii)

(xviii)

the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any Core
Investment Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information and
explanations given to us by the management and the response received by us pursuant to our communication
with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.
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(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information in the
financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As stated in Note 42 to the accompanying financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company does not have any unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect
of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this
report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registra

Rakesh R.
Partner

No.: 001076N/N500013

Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 24109632BKFBKR6459

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 August 2024
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Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran
Engineering & Exim Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI") prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration/No.: 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agdrwal
Partner
Membership No. 109632

UDIN: 24109632BKFBKR6459

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 August 2024
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Vikran Engineering Private Limited (fi ly, Vikran Engi ing & Exim Private Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024 s
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As al As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 4A a64 914 1,028
b} Investment properties 4B 207 207 207
c) Intangible assels 5 23 a5 169
d) Right-of-use assets 6 95 181 61
) Financial assels
i) Other financial assels 8 3,367 5119 1,894
f) Deferrad tax assets (net) 9 876 586 361
g) Non current tax assets (net) 10 388 324 455
h} Other non-current assels " 506 578 384
Total non-current assets 6,326 8,004 4,559
Current assets
a) Invenlories 12 5,073 3,565 3214
b} Financial assets
i) Invesimenis 7 a0 a1 39
il) Trade receivables 13 46,390 36,991 36,403
iii) Cash and cash equivalenis 14 8 12 14
iv) Bank balances other than above 18 4,900 1,430 2342
v} Other financial assets 8 398 179 470
¢) Contract assets 16 28,916 19,464 429
d) Other current assels " 3,879 1,521 518
Total current assets 89,654 63,243 43,429
Total assets 95,980 71,247 47,988
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
a) Equity share capital 17 33 29 29
b) Other equity 18 20,086 13,084 8,892
Total equity 29,129 13,113 8,921
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial llabilities
i) Borrowlings 19 1,070 3,650 3,685
ii) Lease liabilities 20 38 75 27
b) Provisions 24 281 212 191
Total non-current liabilities z 1,389 3,937 3,903
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 19 17,269 11,841 8,186
ii) Lease liabilities 20 36 a5 a7
i) Trade payables
- Dues of micro and small enlerprises 21 4,826 8,964 4,049
- Dues of rade payables other than micro and small enterprises 24,866 20,358 17,568
iv) Other financial liabilities 22 409 380 14
b) Other current liabilities 23 15,206 10,345 4,754
c) Provisions 24 1,059 1,642 556
d) Current tax liabilities (net) 25 1,791 562 -
Total current liabilities 65,462 54,197 35,164
Total liabilities 66,851 58,134 39,067
Total equity and liabllities 95,980 71,247 4'.",9:&I|

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemeants.

This is the Balance Sheel referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok& Co LLP
Chartered Accountghts
Frm'z:ijfﬂlw umbey. 001076N / NS00013

Rakesh R./Aga
Pariner
Membership No. : 109632
Place: Mumbai

Date: 07 August 2024

L

——
=RaKesh Markhedkar

Managing Direclor
DIN : 07009284
Place: Thane

Date: 07 August 2024
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M:ish Bahety

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Thane
Date: 07 Augusit 2024

Director

DIN : 03089201

Place: Thane

Date: 07 August 2024 |

A

Kajal Rakholiya
Company Secretary
Flace: Thane

Date: 07 August 2024



Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 26 78,595 52,431
Other income 27 549 487
Total income 79,144 52,918
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 28 38,496 26,648
Project related expense 29 16,777 9,618
Employee benefits expense 30 5,896 4,053
Finance costs Bl 3,199 2,822
Deprecialion and amortisation expense 3z 405 369
Other expenses 33 4,096 4,140
Total expenses 68,869 47,650
Profit before exceptional items and tax 10,275 5,268
Exceptional items - gain (net) 34 - 130
Profit before tax 10,275 5,398
Tax expense | (credit)
Current tax s 3,074 1,342
Deferred tax 9 (284) (228)
2,790 1,114
Profit for the year (a) 7,485 4,284
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations (28)] 13
Income-tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profil or loss 7 (3)
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (net of tax) (b) (21) 10
Total comprehensive income for the year (a+b) 7,464 4,294
Earnings per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each) 36
Basic eamings per share (in INR) 2,507.40 1,475.39
Diluted earnings per share (in INR) 2,507.40 1,475.39

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chanufm. CoLLP

nts,

Chartered Account |
Firm's Refjistration) Number: 001076N / N500013

Rakesh R.
Partner
Membership No. : 109632
Place: Mumbai

Date: 07 August 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

LY

e ———
Rakesh Markhedkar
Managing Direclor
DIN : 07009284
Place: Thane
Date: 07 August 2024

Ashish Bahety
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Thane
Date: 07 Augusl 2024

o

DIN : 03089201
Place: Thane
Date: 07 Augusl 2024
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Kajal Rakholiya
Company Secretary
Place: Thane

Date: 07 August 2024




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amaunts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 10,275 5,398

Adjustments for:
Balances written off/(written back) (net) (465) 22
Depreciation and amortisalion expense 3z 405 369
Finance cosls on borrowings and leases kil 3,007 2,550
Interest income 27 (329) {211)
Net gain on sale/ change in fair value of mutual fund investments 27 (10) (2)
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 27 - {2)
Inventories written down 12 55 193
Allowance/ (write back] for expecled credil loss 13 517 (270)
Exceptional gain (net) 34 - (130)

Operating profit before working capital changes 13,455 7,917
i M ini i 12 (1,563) (544)
(I Wd in frade | 13 (9.917) (317)
(Increase)idecrease in contract assels 16 (9.452) (19,035}
{Increase)/decrease in other assets a&1 (2,471) (1,727)]
Incr }in trade payabl 21 842 7,836
Increasef{decreasa) in other liabilities 23 4,880 5,967
I }in provisi 24 513 1,107

Cash generated from/ (used in) operations (4,739) 1,204
Income laxes paid (net) 10 1,908 (649}

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities - [A] (6,648) 554

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equi and i ible assels (including capital ad and [4A, 4B &5 (205) (93))
payable for capital goods)
Proceads from sale of property, plant and equipment 4A 4B &S - &
Purchase of invesiments T - (41)
Malurity/{increase) in fixed deposits (not considered as cash and cash equivalent) 15 (1.718) {1,513);
Interest received 27 329 211
Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities - [B] (1,594) (1,431)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (i i ilies premium) 17 8,150 -
Payment of lease liabilities (including interesl thereon) 20 (104) (80)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 19 348 740
Repayment of long term borrowings 19 (1,935), (701)
Proceeds from shorl term borrowings 19 5,794 3,782
Repayment of short term borrowings 19 (625) (404)
Dividend paid 44 (392) (102)
Finance cosls on borrowings paid 27 (2,998 (2,360)(
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities - [C] 8,238 875
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C] (4) (2)
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year 12 14
Cash and cash equival at the end of the year (Refer note 14) 8 12
Non-cash financing activity : Conversion of borrowings into equil 19 794 -
Mon-cash investing aclivity : Acquisilion of right-of-use assels [ - 197
MNotes:

1) Figures in brackets represents outflow of cash and cash equivalents,
2) The statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows".
3) The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Statemenl of Cash Flows referred ta in our report of even date

For Walker Chandipk & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accounta
Firm's Relgistratios ber: 001076M / NSO0013 ' )
———
Rakesh R.\Agard Rakesh Markhedkar %

Pariner Managing Director Director

Membership No. : 109632 DIN : 07009284 DIN : 03089201

Place: Mumbai Place: Thane Place: Thane

Date: 07 August 2024 Date: 07 August 2024 Date: 07 August 2024 |
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Ashish Bahety Kajal Rakholiya
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Thane Place: Thane

Date: 07 August 2024 Date: 07 August 2024



Vikran Engineering Private Limited (f: Iy, Vikran Engi ing & Exim Privale Limited)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slaled)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Notas Number of shares Amount
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up = il
Equity shares of INR 10 each

As at 01 April 2022 17 2,90,378 29
Increasel (decrease) during the year = =

As at 31 March 2023 17 2,90,378 29
Increasef (decrease) during the year 41,651 4
As at 31 March 2024 17 3,32,029 33

B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Particulars Securities p ined ing Total

As at 01 April 2022 1,374 7,518 B,892
Profit for the year - 4,284 4,284
Dividend pald during the year 3 (102) (102)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) (net of tax) - 10 10
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,374 11,710 13,084
Profit far the year - 7.485 7.485
Dividend paid during the year - (392) (392)]
Securities premium on equity shares issued during the year 8,940 - 8,940
Other comprehensive income / (loss) (net of tax) - (21) 21
Balance as at 31 March 2024 10,314 18,762 29,096
Mature of reserves:

i) Securities premium

Securities premium is used o record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is ulilised in with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
il) Retained earnings

Retained i the lated profils / losses made by the Company over the years as reduced by dividends or other distributions paid to the shareholders, and includes

remeasurement gains/ loss on defined benefit plan.

The accompanying notes form an integral pari of these financial slatements.

This is the Stalement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

& ColLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Walker Chandiol
Chartered Accou 5
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Chief Financial Officer Company Secrelary
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Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

Corporate Information

Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited) (the "Company" or "Vikran” or
“VEEPL") is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India. The Company having CIN U9300MH2008PTC272209, is an
Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) Company offering a wide range of integrated end to end services
including infrastructures project, power transmission and distribution, Extra High Voltage (EHV) substation and water
infrastructure including design, supply, civil works, construction, testing and commissioning. The registered office of the
Company is located at 401, Odyssey IT Park, Road No. 9, Industrial Wagle Estate, Thane, Maharashtra, India — 400 604.

With effect from 30 July 2024, the name of the Company has been changed from Vikran Engineering & Exim Private
Limited to Vikran Engineering Private Limited.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on
07 August 2024.

1) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, other relevant provisions of the Act, the presentation and disclosures requirement of Division Il of Schedule
1l to the Act (Ind AS compliant Schedule Il1).

The financial statements have been prepared using going concern assumption and on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial assets and liabilities, defined benefit obligations and employee share-based payments, which are
measured at fair value.

The financial statements upto the year ended 31 March 2023 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 (as amended) (‘previous GAAP' or ‘erstwhile GAAP') and
relevant provisions of the Act.

These are the first Ind AS financial statements of the Company. The date of transition is 01 April 2022. Refer Note 49 for
details of significant first-time adoption exemptions availed by the Company and an explanation of how the transition from
previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, it's performance and cash flows.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as per the requirements
of Schedule 11l, unless otherwise stated. Any amount appearing in financial statements as ‘0’ represent amount less than
INR 50,000.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle
of the Company as per the guidance set out in Schedule Il to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the
Company covers the duration of the project/ contract/ service including the defect liability/ warranty period and extends up
to the realisation of receivables (including retention monies) within the credit period normally applicable to the respective
project/ contract/ service. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.

2) Material accounting policy information

a) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for variable considerations, if
any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the
government. Accruals for variable considerations are estimated based on accumulated experience and underlying
agreements with customers.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

- As the entity performs, the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's
performance.

- The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (e.g., work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced.

- The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

Performance obligations with reference to EPC contracts are satisfied over the period of time, and accordingly, revenue
from such contracts is recognized based on progress of performance determined using input method with reference to the
cost incurred on contract and their estimated total costs. Margin is not recognised until the outcome of the contract is
certain. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party. Revenue, measured
at transaction price, is adjusted towards liquidated damages, time value of money and price variations, escalation, change
in scope etc. wherever, applicable. Variation in contract work and other claims are included to the extent that the amount
can be measured reliably, and it is agreed with customer. Margin is not recognised until the outcome of the contract is
certain.

The Company evaluates whether each contract consists of a single performance obligation or multiple performance
obligations. Due to the nature of the work required to be performed on many of the performance obligations, the estimation
of total revenue and cost at completion is subject to many variables and requires significant judgement. The Company
considers its experience with similar transactions and expectations regarding the contract in estimating the amount of
variable consideration to which it will be entitled and determining whether the estimated variable consideration should be
constrained. The Company includes estimated amounts in the transaction price to the extent it is probable that a significant
reversal of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration
is resolved.

Contracts where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement
or collectability of consideration, is recognised as per the input method, based on the nature of obligations to be performed.
The Company determines the input method on the basis of ratio of costs incurred to date to the total estimated costs at
completion of performance obligation. Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised services or goods to its customers. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate
collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope
or contract price.

Progress billings are generally issued upon completion of certain phases of the work as stipulated in the contract. Billing
terms of the over-time contracts vary but are generally based on achieving specified milestones. The difference between
the timing of revenue recognised and customer billings result in changes to contract assets (unbilled work in progress) and
contract liabilities. Contractual retention amounts billed to customers are generally due upon expiration of the contract
period.

The contracts generally result in revenue recognised in excess of billings which are presented as contract assets in the
balance sheet. Amounts billed and due from customers are classified as receivables on the statement of financial position.
The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final contract settlement is not considered a significant financing
component since it is usually intended to provide customer with a form of security for Company's remaining performance
as specified under the contract, which is consistent with the industry practice. Contract liabilities represent amounts billed
to customers in excess of revenue recognised till date. A liability is recognised for advance payments, and it is not
considered as a significant financing component since it is used to meet working capital requirements at the time of project
mobilization stage. The same is presented as contract liability in the balance sheet.

Estimates of revenue and costs are reviewed periodically and revised, wherever circumstances change, resulting increases
or decreases in revenue determination, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which estimates
are revised.

Costs to obtain a contract which are incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are charged-off in statement
of profit and loss immediately in the period in which such costs are incurred.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Other non-operating income is recognised as and when due or received, whichever is earlier.

b) Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense and deferred tax expenses. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(i) Current income tax:

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions
of the Income Tax Act of the respective jurisdiction. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be ufilised, except when the deferred
tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be ulilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities.

The Company recognises deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that both of the
following conditions are satisfied:

e When the Company can control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; and

o Itis probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises
purchase price, non-refundable taxes, levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment.

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule ||
to the Companies Act, 2013 as per straight line method.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as of 01 April 2022, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of the property, plant and equipment.
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Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

d) Investment properties

Investment properties are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment properties are
measured initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are
met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its investment properties
recognised as of 01 April 2022, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
the property, plant and equipment.

e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets such as computer software acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life of 3 years on straight line method and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss under the head “Depreciation and Amortisation expense”. The estimated useful life of the
intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortization period is
revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets
recognised as of 01 April 2022, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
the property, plant and equipment.

f) Inventories

The stock of construction materials, stores, spares is valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. However,
these items are considered to be realisable at cost if the finished products in which they will be used, are expected to be
sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis and includes all applicable cost of bringing the goods
to their present location and condition. Revenue from sale of scrap material is presented as reduction from cost of materials
consumed in the statement of profit and loss.

g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand and demand deposits with banks, short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and
other bank balances which have restrictions are presented as other bank balances.

h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consists of interest, ancillary costs and other costs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and/or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of the cost of
such assets, up to the date such assets are ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

j) Leases

Company as a lessee

At the commencement date of a lease, the Company recognises a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, impairment losses and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the leased asset transfers
to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification or
a change in the lease term. The Company separately recognises the interest expense on the lease liability as finance cost
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Company accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease when both of the following conditions are met:
« The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets.

. The consideration for the lease increases commensurate with the price for the increase in scope and any adjustments
to that stand-alone price reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that fully or partially decreases the scope of the lease the Company decreases the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect partial or full termination of the lease. Any difference between those
adjustments is recognized in profit or loss at the effective date of the modification.

The Company has elected to use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease terms
ends within 12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low
value. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with such leases as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss.

k) Financial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments (assets and liabilities) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to a contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities, other than those designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in statement
of profit and loss. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.
The amount of retention money held by the customers is disclosed as part of trade receivables.

i. Financial assets

All regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchase or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

+ Contractual terms of the instruments give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument or where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables, loans,
etc.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instrument

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass through' arrangement; and either

- the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

« Debt instruments measured at amortised cost e.g., bank deposits
« Trade receivables
« Other financial assets not designated as FVTPL

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL
are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument,
The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables (including
lease receivables). The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. s
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Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

ii. Financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the financial liabilities are held for trading or are designated as FVTPL
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

De-recognition
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
iii. Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration under the contract with a customer that is
uncenditional and realizable on the due date (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is due). Trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

iv. Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per agreed terms. Trade payables are presented based
on the operating cycle of the Company. They are recognised initially at their transaction price and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

v. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1) Provisions (other than employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

m) Provision for warranty

The estimated liability for warranty is recorded at the commencement of defect liability period. These estimates are
established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of obligations and management
estimates regarding possible future incidence during the period under warranty phase.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

n) Contingencies

Disclosure of contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continuously
and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the assets and the related income are recognised
in the period in which the change occurs. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

o) Employee Benefits

Liability on account of short term employee benefits is recognised on an undiscounted and accrual basis during the period
when the employee renders service/ vesting period of the benefit.

Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company pays contribution to the provident fund and employee state insurance corporation which is administered by
respective Government authorities. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The Contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss to the year it
pertains.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity: The Company's liability towards gratuity is determined using the projected unit credit method which considers
each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The cost for past services s recognized on a straight line basis over the average period until the
amended benefits become vested.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that is determined by
reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Government bonds where the currency and the terms of
Government bonds are consistent with the currency and estimated term of defined benefit obligation.

p) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares from the exercise of
options on unissued share capital. The number of equity shares is the aggregate of the weighted average number of equity
shares and the weighted average number of equity shares which are to be issued in the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares into equity shares.

q) Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that
their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such
material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

r) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of the whole Group as one
segment of EPC. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”, the Company's entire business falls under this
one operational segment and hence the necessary information has already been disclosed in the Balance Sheet and the
statement of profit and loss.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

2.1 Key accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Examples of such estimates include estimation of useful lives of property plant and equipment, employee costs,
assessments of recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets, trade receivables and cash generating units, provisions
against litigations and contingencies. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed by management at each
reporting date. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision of these estimates is recognised prospectively
in the current and future periods.

(i) Deferred income taxes

The assessment of the probability of future taxable profit in which deferred tax assets can be utilized is based on the
Company's latest forecast, which is adjusted for significant non-taxable profit and expenses and specific limits to the use
of any unused tax loss or credit. The tax rules in the different jurisdictions in which the Company operates are also carefully
taken into consideration. If a positive forecast of taxable profit indicates the probable use of a deferred tax asset, especially
when it can be utilized without a time limit, that deferred tax asset is usually recognized in full.

(i) Revenue recognition

Determination of revenue under percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates, some of which
are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to completion, the expected
revenue from the project or activity and foreseeable losses to completion. Estimates of project income, as well as project
costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is recognised in the financial statements for the
year in which such changes are determined.

(iii) Current income taxes

The tax jurisdiction for the Company is India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income
taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment
can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods. The recognition of taxes that are
subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties is assessed individually by management based on the specific
facts and circumstances.

(iv) Accounting for defined benefit plans

In accounting for post-retirement benefits, several statistical and other factors that attempt to anticipate future events are
used to calculate plan expenses and liabilities. These factors include expected discount rate assumptions and rate of future
compensation increases. To estimate these factors, actuarial consultants also use estimates such as withdrawal, turnover,
and mortality rates which require significant judgment. The actuarial assumptions used by the Company may differ
materially from actual results in future periods due to changing market and economic conditions, regulatory events, judicial
rulings, higher or lower withdrawal rates, or longer or shorter participant life spans.

(v) Impairment

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset's or cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount to determine the recoverable amount, management estimates expected future cash flows from
each asset or cash generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. In the process of measuring expected future cash flows, management makes assumptions about future
operating results. These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances. The actual results may vary, and may
cause significant adjustments to the Company's assets.

In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment to market risk and
the appropriate adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.

(vi) Foreseeable losses

In case of contracts, when it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
(foreseeable loss) is recognised. Such loss is measured based on management experience of handling similar contract in
past and estimates regarding possible future incidence during the contract period.
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(vii) Expected credit loss
Refer note for Impairment of financial assets mentioned in accounting policy on financial instruments above.
(viii) Fair value of financial instruments

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where active market quotes
are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses
estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use
in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best estimate about the
assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.

(ix) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event and it is probable that the

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These

are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. The assessment of the
| existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use
| of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

(x) Joint arrangements

Based on the requirement of tender issuing authority/ prospective customer, the Company has formed joint arrangement
which are not body corporate. The Company applies judgment considering the underlying terms agreed with the venturer,
substance of transactions and responsibility assumed by the Company including managing operations of such venture.
Basis such assessment, if the Company determines that (a) joint control does not exist and (b) in substance it assumes
practically all the risk and rewards related to such arrangements, it considers such arrangement as its own extension.
Accordingly, as at reporting periods, the Company has included the results and transactions of such arrangements in its
separate financial statements and has not considered such arrangements as separate component for reporting purpose.

(xi) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of
a lease required significant judgement. The Company uses judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated
renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in non-cancellable
period of a lease.

3

—

Standards issued but not yet effective

As on the date of release of these financial statements, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not issued any new accounting
standards/ amendments to existing accounting standards which are effective from 01 April 2024.
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Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4B: Investment properties

Particulars Amount
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 01 April 2022 207
Additions -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 207
Additions -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 207

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2022 -
Depreciation charge for the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 -
Depreciation charge for the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 -

Net carrying amount:

As at 01 April 2022 207

As at 31 March 2023 207

As at 31 March 2024 207
Notes:

i) Investment properties of the Company comprise of land in respect of which the work towards its development has not been
started as at the reporting dates.

ii) On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all investment properties measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of investment properties.

iii) The title deeds of all the investment properties are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet dates.

iv) The Company has not earned any income from its investment properties during the reporting periods.

v) As at 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 01 April 2022, the fair values of the properties are INR 2,696 lakhs, INR 2,373 lakhs
and INR 2,018 lakhs, respectively. These valuations are based on valuations performed by an independent registered valuer.
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Total
software
Gross carrying amount
As at 01 April 2022 252 252
Additions 1 1
As at 31 March 2023 253 253
Additions 4 4
As at 31 March 2024 257 257
Accumulated amortisation
As at 01 April 2022 83 83
Amortisation charge for the year 75 75
As at 31 March 2023 158 158
Amortisation charge for the year 76 76
As at 31 March 2024 234 234
Net carrying amount
As at 01 April 2022 169 169
As at 31 March 2023 95 95
As at 31 March 2024 23 23

Note: The Company has opted for deemed cost exemption for intangible assets and therefore, the carrying amount under previous
GAAP is deemed to be the cost at the date of transition. The carrying amounts as at 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 01 April 2022
would continue to remain at the amounts as they would have remained under the previous GAAP.




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slaled)

Note 6: Right-of-use (ROU) assets

Particulars Leased premises Total

Gross carrying amount
As at 1 April 2022 (Refer note (ii) below) 98 98
Additions 197 197
As at 31 March 2023 295 295
Additions - -
As at 31 March 2024 295 295 |

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2022 37 kT4
Depreciation charge for the year 7 7
As at 31 March 2023 114 114
Depreciation charge for the year BB 86
As at 31 March 2024 200 200

Net carrying amount

As at 01 April 2022 61 61

As at 31 March 2023 181 181

As at 31 March 2024 95 95
Notes:

(i) Refer note 38 for disclosure on leased assels.
(ii) Represent impact on transition to Ind AS. Refer note 49 for details of impact on account of transition to Ind AS.




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes fo the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Note 7: Investments

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Current
- Units of mutual funds* a0 81 39
Total 20 a1 39 |
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted invesiments a0 81 39
Aggregate amount of impairment allowance in the value of investments - - -
Investmenls carried at amortised cost - - -
lInvestments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - - -
|Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss a0 81 39
* Includes INR 33 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 27 lakhs and 01 April 2022: INR 27 lakhs) given as collaterals against borrowings taken by the Company.
Note: Information required under section 186(4) to the Act
(a) The Company has not made any investment except as disclosed above.
(b) There are no loans given during the reporling periods.
Note 8: Other financial assets
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Non (U d, idered good)
Indirect taxes refund receivable 800 800 -
Bank deposils having remaining maturity of more than 12 months® 2,567 4,319 1,894 |
3,367 5,119 1,894
Current (Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits** 70 59 92
|Interest accrued bul not due a7 50 249
Earnest money deposits (EMD)** 172 19 22
Other receivables® 69 51 107
398 179 470

* held as margin money agains t ings, gu tees and other cc i including

** Security deposits and EMD's are interest Iree non-derivative financial assels carried at amortised cost. These primarily i

premises and for tender bidding.

A Primarily includes reimbursements receivable towards amount paid for crop compensation.

| securilies (with various government authorities and banks).

L rented

given




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Note 9: Deferred tax assets (net)

Net deferred tax assets

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Deferred tax liabilitles arising on account of :
Temporary differences between book and tax balance of property, plant and equipment - 9 M
Temporary differences between right of use assels and lease liability i) 3 -
5 12 M
Deferred tax ts arising on t of
Expense allowable on payment basis 586 454 179
Expected credit loss 275 144 212
Temporary differences between book and lax balance of properly, plant and equipment 20 - -
Temporary differences between right of use assets and lease liability - - 1
881 598 392
B76 586 361

The Company offsels tax assels and liabilities only if it has a legally enforceable right lo set off current tax assels and currenl lax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

(a) Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024

Particulars

Opening balance

(Charged) /

(Charged) / credited

Closing balance as

as at credited to P&L to OCI at
01 April 2023 31 March 2024
Deferred tax llablity arising on account of
On timing difference between book depreciation and deprecialion as per the ] (9) - -
Income-tax Act, 1961
Temporary differences between right of use assels and lease liability 3 2 - 5
12 (7) - 5
Deferred tax asset arising on account of
Expense allowable on paymenl basis 454 126 T 586
Expected credit loss 144 131 - 275
On timing difference between book depreciation and depreciation as per the - 20 - 20
Income-tax Act, 1961
598 277 7 881
Deferred tax assets (net) 586 284 7 876
(b) Movemnent in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from 01 April 2022 to 31 March 2023
Particulars Opening balance (Charged)/ (Charged) / credited | Closing balance as
as at credited to P&L to OCI at
01 April 2022 31 March 2023
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of
On timing difference between book depreciation and dep as per the 3 (22) - 9
Income-tax Act, 1961
Temporary differences between righl of use assets and lease liability (1) 4 - 3
30 (18) - 12
Deferred tax assets arising on account of
Expense allowable on payment basis 179 278 (3) 454
Expected credit loss 212 (68) - 144
391 210 (3) 598
Deferred tax assets (net) 361 228 (3) 586




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 10: Non-current tax assets (net)

Particulars

Advance tax (net)

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
388 324 455
388 324 455

Note: The above amounts are net off provisions of INR 3,091 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 1,7

lakhs) respectively.

MNote 11: Other assets

49 lakhs and 01 April 2022: INR 2,316

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
01 April 2022

Non - current:

Prepaid expenses 506 578 384
506 578 384
Current:
Advances to employees (Unsecured, considered good) 241 114 53
Prepaid expenses 544 260 171
Advances to suppliers and sub-conltractors (Unsecured, considered 1,713 550 234
good)
Balances with government authorities (net) 1,381 597 60
3,879 1,521 518
Note 12: Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Construction materials 4,822 2,015 1,994
Stores and spare parts 164 85 34
Goods in transit 87 1,465 1,186
5,073 3,565 3,214

Note: Inventories provided/written off during the year ended 31 March 2024: INR 56 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 193 lakhs, 1 April
2022: INR 90 lakhs). These amounts are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Note 13: Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Unsecured:
Considered good:
- Receivable from related parly (Refer note 41) 166 - -
- Others (Refer note 13.1) 46,224 36,991 36,403
Credit impaired 1,090 572 842
47,480 37,563 37,245
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (Refer nole 13.2) (1,090) (572) (842)
Total 46,390 36,991 36,403
Sub-classification of trade receivables
Considered good - secured - - -
Considered good - unsecured 46,390 36,991 36,403
Significant increase in credit risk . - -
Credit impaired 1,090 572 842
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (1,090) (572) (842)
46,390 36,991 36,403

Notes:

(a) Trade receivable includes an amount of INR 166 lakhs (31 March 2023 : Nil and 01 April 2022 : Nil) from a entity in which one of the directors is a pariner.
(b) Trade receivables includes retention money amounting to INR 11,063 lakhs (31 March 2023 : INR 5,556 lakhs and 01 April 2022 : INR 9,803 lakhs).

Note 13.1: Trade receivables as al 31 March 2024 includes dues from a customer amounting to INR 2,929 lakhs (31 March 2023:
INR 2,023 Lakhs). The said customer has invoked the performance guarantee and short closed the project in the month of April
2023. The Company has filed a claim for recovery of dues from the customer in the Commercial Court - Jaipur during the current
year and the matter is currently pending for disposal. Management, based on the contractual tenability of their claim and legal
opinion obtained, is confident of recovering such amount and hence the same is considered good of recovery as at the reporting
date, and also no liability is likely to arise for the Company on the aforesaid matter. Accordingly, no adjustments have been made to

the financial statements in this respect.

Mote 13.2: Movement in expected credit loss allowance :

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 01 April 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 572 B42 -
Add: Allowance made during the year 518 - 842
Less: Reversal of allowance/ amounts written back - (270) -
Balance at the end of the year 1,090 572 842




Vikran Englneering Private Limited (f

ly. Vikran Eng

ing & Exim Private Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Trade

ageing (excluding

As at 31 March 2024

d credit loss

[+] ling for following periods from due date of payment
Not D Total
Ferticulacs et Lesatian’e & months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years s
months
38,754 3.158 633 647 116 153 43,461
40 37 70 210 116 617 090
> = S 2,929 z = ,929
38,794 3,195 703 3,786 232 770 47,480
As at 31 March 2023
o] ding for fellowing periods from due date of payment
Paitciti NotIN l'e:‘:::::: 3 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years u=l
33,306 2,896 243 - = * 36,445
- - 20 315 154 a3 §72
R - - - 547 = 547
33,306 2,896 263 31§ 701 83 37,564
As at 01 April 2022
Out ding for following periods from due date of pay
Particulars Hot s Lar:l:::::: " 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
23167 10,524 499 985 8 82 35,266
23 104 50 328 9 328 842
3 . - 1,137 - - 1,137
23,190 10,628 549 2,450 18 410 37,245
Mote 14: Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Balances with banks in current accounls 1 10 10
Cash on hand 7 2 4
Total 8 12 14

iva reporting pariods.




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 15: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
In deposits accounts 4,900 1,430 2,342
Total 4,900 1,430 2,342

Note: The above fixed deposils are held as margin money or security against borowings, guarantees and other commitments.

Note 16: Contract assets (unbilled work in progress)

Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Contract assels (unbilled work in progress) 28,916 19,464 429

28,916 19,464 429
Note: Refe note 50 for additional details in relation to contract assets.



Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 17: Equity share capital

Authorised share capital:

Equity shares of INR 10 each Number Amount

Balance as at 01 April 2022 5,00,000 50

Change during the year - -

Balance as at 31 March 2023 5,00,000 50

Change during the year - -

Balance as at 31 March 2024 5,00,000 50

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:

Equity shares of INR 10 each Number Amount

Balance as at 01 April 2022 2,90,378 29

Issued during the year 0 -

Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,90,378 29

Issued during the year* 41,651 4

Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,32,029 33

* Details of shares issued during the year

5. No. Date of issue Number Face value (in INR)  Securities premium Total amount Total amount
(in INR) (excluding securities (including securities

premium) premium)
i. 25 January 2024 20,696* 10.00 21,465.11 2 4,444
il 16 January 2024 20,955 10.00 21,465.11 2 4,500

* Includes 3,700 equity shares issued to Vikran Global Infraproject Private Limited upon conversion of borrowings into equity shares during the year ended 31 March 2024,

a) Terms and rights allached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equily shares is enlilled to one vole per share. The equity shareholders are entitled to dividend

and to be

to be proposed by the Board of Dil

b|

i by the shareholders in the General Meeting, excepl interim dividend, if any. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be enfiled o receive remaining assels of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of fully paid-up equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of shareholder As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Humber %, of holding Number % of holding MNumber % of holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each
Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limited 1,44,948 43.66% 1,44,948 49.92% 1,44,948 49.92%
Farista Financial Censultants Private Limited 144,430 43.50% 144,430 49.74% 144,430 49.74%
India Inflection Opportunity Trust — India Inflection 20,955 6.31% - - - -
|Opportunity Fund
The above information is furnished as per the s register as at 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 01 April 2022 respectively.
c) Details of equity shares held by promoters
particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limited 144,948 43.66% 1,44,948 49.92% 1,44,948 49.92%
Farista Financial Consullants Private Limited 1,44,430 43.50% 1,44,430 49.74% 1.44,430 49.74%
Rakesh Markhedkar 1,000 0.30% 1.000 0.34%] 1,000 0.34%

d) %change inp 1 PRI

% change during the| % change during the
Particulars year ended 31 March [year ended March 31,
2024 & 2023
Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limited -6.26%) -
Farista Financial Consultants Private Limited 65.24%| -
Rakesh Markhedkar -0.04%] -

# There is reduclion in the p

equity shares held by promoters,

ge holding of p

during the current year as additional equily shares have been issued during the current year, however there is no change in the number of

¢) Bonus shares / buy back / shares for consideration other than cash issued during past five years:

(i) Aggregate number and class of shares allolled as fully paid up p tlo without being

upan conversion of loan inte equity shares during the year ended 31 March 2024.
(il) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nil
(iii} Aggregate number and class of shares bought back - Nil

f) The Company has made private placement of equity shares during the year ended 31 March 2024. The Ci

d in cash - 3,700 shares allolted to to Vikran Global Infraproject Private Limited

ts of section 42 and section 62 of the Act

y has complied with the applicable requi

and the rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further, the amounis so raised have been ulilised by the Company for the purposes for which these funds were raised.




Vikran Englneering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ANl amounts In INR lakhs, unless olherwise stated)

Nate 18: Other equity

Particulars As at As at As at
31 Ma 024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Securilies premium 10,314 1,374 1,314
Retlained eamings 18,782 11,710 7,518
| Total 29,096 13,084 8,892 |
Securitios premium
As at As al Asat
P 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,374 1,374 1,374
On Issue of equily shares 8,940 . -
Balance at the end of the year 10,314 1,374 1,374
(i} _Retained eamnings
Al As at As at As al
Pathiilpe 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 11,710 7.518 6,938
Profil for the year 7.485 4,284 658
Dividend paid during the year (Refer nole 44) (392) (102) (80)
Items of olher comprehensive income recognised In relained eamings (net of lax) (21) 10 2
Balancoe at the end of the year 18,782 11,710 7,518




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (fermerly, Vikean Englneering & Exim Private Limited)
MNotas to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless olherwise stated)

Note 19: Barrowings

Particulars As al As al As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
MNon-current - at amortised cost
eeured
Term loans
= from banks 1,529 1861 2,0M
Less: Current maturities of long-lerm hormowings (552) (367), (233}
a7 1.494 1,838
Vahicle loans
- from banks 5 B L[]
- from financial institution = 4 16
Lass: Current malurilies of long-lerm bomowings {31 (7] (14)
2 5 12
&
‘Working capital loans
- from banks m 1| 134
- from financlal Institulion 282 M2 255
Less: Current maturilies of leng-lerm bomowings (I62)) {344} (255}
91 179 134
Loan from related party [Refer nole 6(1) balow] . 1972 1,701
‘Lﬂ'o 3,650 3,685
(Current - at amortlsed cost —
Secured
Current maturities of leng-term bomowings 555 374 247
Cash credit Tacilities 11,697 B.3TT 6.451
Suppliar bills discounted
- from financial instilution 3,737 2,518 977
15,989 11,269 1.675
Unsecured
Cuwrent maturities of long-tarm borrowings 62 344 255
Working capital loans:
= from banks 39 70 -
- frem financial instilution 818 145 256
Supplier bllls discounted
- from financial instilution &1 -
Loan from related party [Refer note 6(il) balow] = 13 .
1,280 572 511
17,269 11,841 8,186
£22 e

a) Nature, security and terms of repayment of borrowings :
1) Term loan from banks :

(i) Term Joan from banks includes working capital larm k It 1 busi quil loans carrying vasiable interest rale ranging from 7.55% p.a. lo 8.53% p.a. linked lo MCLR with agreed inlerest rale resel clause and is repayable in 60
16 72 aqual monihly instalments along with interest, uplo FY 2027-28, These are primarily secured by way of first pari-passu charge on the entire current assets of the Company including inventories, receivables and all other currenl assels
both presant as well as future. The loan are also secured by certain office premises, land, fxed deposits and mutual funds investiments of the Company.

The loan is also securad by way of personal guaraniee by Mr, Rakesh {Chairman and director), Me. Avinash Markhedkar (Director), Mes. Kanchan Markhedkar (relative of a Director), Mr. Nakul Markhedkar (Relative of a
Director) and Mr. Vipul Markhedkar (Relalive of a Director). The facility is also secured by way of corperate guaraniee given by Farista Financiats Consultants Private Limited (Promoter) and Deb Suppllers and Traders Privale Limited
{Promater). The above ioned have also given cerlain parsenal immovable properties as securly.

2) Vehicle loan from banks and financial institulion:

(i) Viehicle loan from banks carrias variable inlersst rate of 8.05% p.a. linked to Repo Linked Loan Rate (RLLR) wilh agreed interes! rate reset dlause and is repayable in 60 monihly instalments along wilh interest upto FY 2025-26. The vehicles
financed through such borrowing are forming part of the property, plant and equipment and have been for the said i

(i) Vahicia loan from financial instilution carries variable intarest rate of 10.59% p.a, linked to Repo Linked Loan Rate (RLLR) with agreed interest rate resel clause and was rep
24. Tha said loan in repaid fully in the current year. The vehicles financed through such borrowing are forming part of the property. plant and and have bean

3) Cash credit facilities

Cash credit facilities are repayable on demand carrying variable interest rale ranging from 9.25 % p.a. to 11.87 % p.a. linked to MCLR. These are primanly secured by way of hypothecalion on {he entire current assels of the Company, bolh
present as well as future.

le in 36 monlhly instalments along with inlerest upto FY 2023-
for the said borrowings.

The facilily is also secured by way of personal guarantee by Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar (Chalrman and Managing director), Mr, Avinash Markhedkar (Director), Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar {relative of a Director), Mr. Nakul Markhedkar (Relafive of
a Director) and Mr. Vipul Markhedkar (Refative of a Director). The facility is also secured by way of corporale guarantes glven by Farista Financials Consullants Privale Limited (Promater) and Deb Suppliers and Traders Private Limited
(Promater). The above mentioned personnel have also given certain personal immovable properties as securily.

4) Working capital loan from banks (unsecured) (current and non-current) :
Waorking capital loans from banks caries fixed interest rate ranging from 14.00% p.a. lo 17.50% p.a. and is repayable in 12 1o 36 monthly instalments along with interest.

5} Working capital loan from [{ d) {currant and non-current):
Working capital loans from financial institulions canies fixed inlerest rate ranging from 9.23% p.a. to 21.00% p.a. and is repayable in 10 to 36 monthly i

aong wilh inleres.

&)} Loan from related pariles:

i} Loan taken from Vikran Global Infraprejects Private Limited amounting to Nil as on 31 March 2024 {31 March 2023: INR 1,972 lakhs and 01 April 2022 INR 1,701 lakhs) which carried inleresl rate of 10.00% p.a. In the cumrenl year, pursuant
to selllement agreement, the same has been parlly converted inlo 3,700 equity shares at INR 21,475.11 each (including securilies premium of INR 21,465.11 each) and remaining amount has been repald.

iiy Loan taken from Rakesh Markhedkar HUF amounting lo Nil as on 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023; INR 13 lakhs and 01 April 2022: Nil) carried interest rale of 18% p.a. and repayabla on demand. The same has been repald in the cument

yaar.

7} Supplier bilis di ted and }
The Company paricipatas in supply chaln financing arrangement (SCF) which is presented under bomowings under which suppliers may elect 1o receive eatly payment of their invoice from by faclaring their recaivabla from the Company,
Securad;

Such arrangament carrias interesi rale ranging from 11.50% p.a. to 13.75% p.a. and are repayable within a period of 3 to & months. The same are secured by way of bank guarantess provided and cerain fixed doposits of the Company,

Unsecurad
Unsecured SCF carres interesl rate of 11.25% p.a. and is repayable within a period of 3 months




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Englnoering & Exlm Private Limited)
Hotes to the financial stalements as al and for ihe year ended 31 March 2024
{An unds in INR lakhs, unl staled)

b {1} The quartedy relurns/statements of curment assels fied by the Company wilh bank is in agreemant with the books of accounts for the quaders of the year ended 31 March 2024 except for following Instances:

Working capltal limits | Nature of current assets held as Partlculars of Amount disclosed as | Amount as per books e
Hafsixiar (Rhank sanctioned security Ruaristandnd securilies provided per return of account L
Inventories 4,730 4407 3
13,000 [Jure 2023
Teade recalvables 46,296 44,830 1A0E
Inveniodies 5410 4,962 448
13,000 Seplembar 2023
Trade receivatdes 40,691 an424 267
Consartium of banks "““;':n':‘::r“””h'
z Inveniories 5,666 5135 531
13,000 (& 2023
Trado raceivabies 38,239 7,504 335
Inventorias ERA S 5073 40
13.000 March 2024
Trade receivables 64,804 61.637 3267
“The differances are due o ions being made basi inancial ion by the Company.
i) (I} The quartardy relumsisiatements of curren! assels fled by the Company wilh bank is in agreament wilh tha books of accounts for Ihe quarters ol the yaar ended 31 March 2023 excepl for following instances:
Working capital limits | Nalure of current assets held as Parliculars of Ameunt disclosed as | Amount as per books. ]
N Al sanciioned sacurity Quirtersiat securities provided jper return of aceaunt Bliarnes:
Invantorias 2,989 2,888 102
8,800 [June 2022
Trade recaivables 9406 8,574 {16a))
Inventodes 3,382 292 &0
8800 Seplembar 2022
Trade racaivables 870 8,152 {a82)
(Consortivm of banks "l e u‘n:mm ety ol thw:
ompany
Invaniories loz8 2,945 B2
6,900 December 2022
Trade recelvables 6513 B.164 M9
Inventories 2814 271z 43
8,900 March 2023
Trade raceivables 25,137 28,193 {1.056)
** The are an account of Tiled with the lendess on financisl prepared on p basis. Statutory deductions recorded as and when it app. tax partal, Tha to bonders is
calculnled as per the given norms.
) The Company has utlised tha bomowings for the speciic purpesa for which il was oblained,
d) The Company has not bean daclared willul defauller by any bank or financial institution of lendar during tha reporting periods and thare are no fi I requiring in the terms & condilions of
bomowings.
&) Recenciilation betwesn opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabllitles arising from financing activities as required by Ind AS T "Statement of Cash Flows® Is as under:
As 8t Hon-cash changes As at
Particulars 01 Aprll 2023 Ciainions Py BuHotes Interest accruod Other changes 31 March 2024
Equily shase capilal (Refer note (1) bakow) 29 4 - ) [} 33
Secwilies premium (Refer nots (i) balaw) 1374 8,146 i . 794 10,314
Lang-lerm cumen 4409 38 (1,935 * (Te4)) 1,987
Leazs liabilities (Relar nola (i) balow) 170 - {104 a [3}] T4
Shori-larm bormowings (Reler nols (i) below) 11,082 5784 {625) - B0 16,352
at Hon-cash changes As at
Paidpiias 01 April 2022 Chslrinflows Gashautaws Inlerost sccrusd Other changes 31 March 2023
Equity shara capital 29 - - = = 20
Securiies premium 1,374 - - - - 1,374
Lang-tarm ding current 4,188 T40 {7o1) 182 - 4409
Laase liabilias (Refec nota (i} below) L - (80} 8 178 170
Shaut-term borrowings (Refer nola (i) below) 7.683 3782 (404)| s 22 11,082
Hotes :
(i) Othar changes in oquity share caplul and securities prumlumis an accoun n{awr;- slnras I-uuau durmg the year for consideralion other than cash.
(i) Othar changes in is account of of ancilliary ings into equity during tha year ended 31 March 2024 and on accounl of of i of anciliary i | during the year

ended 31 March 2023,
(i) Dithar changas in lease lisbiklies is on account of i liabiliti s in ith Ind AS 116 in the years including Il Aharaan in | Habilits




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts In INR lakhs, unless othervise slated)

1) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrawings lo any lander of in the payment of interes! thereon, except for the balow:

(i) For the year ended 31 March 2023:

Principal andfor Interest not | Range of number of
Nature of borrowing Hame of lender sl on duis duts At afa
Kotak Mahindra Bank 15 |Less than 30 days
IDFC First Bank Limited 22 |Less than 30 days
[Axis Bank Limiled 27 |Less than 30 days
Axis Bank Limited 7 [30 10 45 da
Unity Small Finance Bank Limited 19 |Less than 30 days
;@_F_C Bkanlk Limited 2 |Less than 30 days
wdbank Financial Services Limitad 25 |Less than 30 days
[Warkdryg Cepiat Loay Ciix Capital Services 4 [Less than 30 days
Tata Capilal Financial Services 9 [Less than 30 days
22 JLess than 30 days |
8 |Less than 30 days
36 |Less (han 30 days
Mangal Credit & Fincorp Limiled 5 [Less than 30 days
Credit Trade Link 265 |Less than 30 days
Invaice Mart 243 |Less than 30 days
Supplier bills discounted M1 exchange 22 |Less than 30 dat
REIL 397 |Less lhan 30 days
Hote 20; Leasa liabilitios
Particulars As at As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Non-current
Leasa liabilities (Refer nole 38} 38 75 27
3B 75 27
Current
Lease liabilities (Refer nole 368) 36 a5 ar
36 95 37
Hote 21: Trade payables
Particulars As al As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Dues fo :
- Micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSE) 4,826 8,964 4,049
- Trade payables other than MSE 24,856 20,358 17,568
[Total 20,692 29,322 21,617
{a) Trade p are i Interest bearing and are settied within normal operating cycle of the Company.
{b) Trade payables includes relention money amounting to INR 5,743 lakhs (31 March 2023 : INR 3,566 lakhs and 01 Apdl 2022: INR 2,355 lakhs).
Mote: Micre and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have been delermined based on the
Information as availabla wilth the Company and the delails of amount oulstanding due o them are as glven befow,
As at As al Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
{a) The principal amount and the interest due ihereon remaining
unpaid o any supplier as al tha end of each accounting year
- Pringipal amount due to micro and small enferpriszes 4,578 8,660 3,948
- Interes! due on abave 250 284 100
(b} Tha amount of inlerest paid by the buyer in lerms of Seclion 16 of]
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Acl, 2006,
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the = =
ppointed day during each accounting year.
(c) The amount of inlerest due and payable for the pencd of delay in 176 20 5
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) bul wilhout adding the inlerest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmant Acl, 2006,
(d) Tha amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the and of| 250 284 100
each accounting year,
(e} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in - - -
the succeeding years, uniil such date when the interest dues above are|
aclually pald lo the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of
a deductible expenditure under Seclion 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medi Davelopment Act, 2006,
Trada payable ageing:
As at 31 March 2024
Nol Due [+ ding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1.2 years 2-3 yoars More than 3 years
i} Undisputed dues - MSE 3,657 1,169 - 1] - 4,826
i) Uindisputed dues - Others® 15,838 1.799 B54 375 - 24,866
iii) Disputed dues - MSE - - - - - -
19,485 8,968 B854 375 - 29,692
“Includes unbilled lrade payables within the category "Mot Due” amounting to INR 2,128 lakhs.
As al 31 March 2023
[Particulars Hot Dua Dulstanding for fellowing perods from dua date of Total
| Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
i 7.960 1,003 - 1 8,964
18,049 1,515 678 86 29 20,357
- - o 1 - 1
26,009 2,518 678 a7 30 20,322
*Includes unbillad trade payables within the category 'Not Dua’ amounting to INR 4,483 lakhs.
As al 01 April 2022
Particul Hot Due g for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 yaars 2-3 years More than 3 years
3.992 57 - = = 4,049
15,806 B34 361 445 12 17.567
1] = 1 - - 1
19,888 an 362 445 12 21,617




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 22: Other current financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Employee related payables 398 373 8
Payable for capital goods 11 17 6
409 390 14
Note 23: Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Contract liability (Refer note 50) 14,759 8,731 2,794
Advance from customers - revenue received in advance (Refer note 50) 201 1,290 1,798
Statutory dues payable 248 324 162
Total 15,206 10,345 4,754
Note 24: Provisions
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Non-current
Provision for warranty 59 46 38
Provision for gratuity (refer note 37) 222 166 153
281 212 191
Current
Provision for foreseeable losses 798 1,458 422
Provision for warranty 19 48 20
Provision for gratuity (refer note 37) 3| 19 2
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 37) 211 17 112
1,059 1,642 556
Note 24.1: M tin pr for for ble |
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,458 422 116
Recognised during the year 16, - 1,306 306
Ulilised/reversed during the year (776) (270) -
Balance at the end of the year 798 1,458 422
In case of contracts, when it is probable that total contracl costs will exceed total conlract revenue, the expecled loss (foreseeable loss) is
recognised as an expense immediately in the slatement of profit and loss.
Note 24.2 : Movement in provision for warranty (current and non current):
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 94 58 51
Recognised during the year 47 140 65
Utilised/reversed during the year (63) (104) (58)
Balance al the end of the year 78 94 58

The Company has made provision for expenses expecled lo be incurred during defect liabilily period which are in the nalure of assurance
warranly. The Company expects to incur the related expenditure over the defect liability period.

Note 25: Current tax liabilities

Particulars

Income tax liabilities (net of advance taxes paid - INR 1,283 lakhs as at 31
March 2024 and INR 780 lakhs as at 31 March 2023)

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
1,791 562 -
1,791 562 -




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 26: Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Sale of services:

Income from engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) services 77,669 52,431

Other operating revenue:

Liabilities (project related) no longer required to be paid, wrilten back 266 4

Reversal of provision towards foreseeable losses on contracls (net) 660 2
= 78,595 52,431

Note: Refer note 50 for additional details.

Note 27: Other income

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Interest income on:

- on bank deposits 329 203
- on income tax refund - 7
Other non operating income:
Provisions/liabilities no longer required written back 209 -
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) - 2
Gain on mutual fund investments (on sale and fair value changes) 10 2
Allowance for expected credit loss written back - 270
Miscellaneous income 1 3
549 487
Note 28: Cost of materials consumed (including stores and spares)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cost of materials consumed (Refer note 12) 38,496 26,648
Total 38,496 26,648
Reconciliation of cost of materials consumed :
Opening stock 2,101 2,028
Opening stock in lransit 1,465 1,186
Add: Purchases during the year (net) 40,003 27,000
Less: closing stock 4,986 2,101
Less: closing stock in transit 87 1,465
38,496 26,648
Note 29: Project related expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Sub-conlracling charges 12,780 7,832
Technical consultancy charges 2,813 77
Plant and machinery hire charges (Refer note 38) 328 216
Transportalion charges 325 147
Loading and unloading charges 302 173
Survey cosls 113 17
Warranty expenses a7 140
Other projecl expenses 69 217
16,777 9,618
Note 30: Employee benefits expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries and bonus (including direclors’ remuneration) 5,304 3,620
Caonlribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 37) 229 171
Staff welfare expenses 183 175
Gratuity expense (Refer note 37) i 59
Compensated absences expense (Refer note 37) 103 28
5,896 4,053 |
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Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 31: Finance costs

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Interest expense on:

- borrowings carried at amortised cost 2,341 1,896
- delayed payment of statutory dues 16 68
- lease liabilities (Refer note 38) 9 8
- delayed payment to micro and small enterprises vendors 176 204
Other borrowing costs* 657 646

3,199 2,822
*primarily includes loan processing charges, guaranlee charges and other charges.
Note 32: Depreciation and amortisati {
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 4A) 243 217
Depreciation on right of use assels (Refer nole 6) 86 7
Amortisation on intangible assets (Refer nole 5) 76 75
405 369

Note 33: Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Eleclricily expenses 56 42
Rent expense (Refer nole 38) 324 204
Repairs and maintenance - buildings 4 4
Repairs and maintenance - others 257 179
Security charges 335 222
Insurance 236 129
Rates and taxes 342 320
Vehicle hire charges (Refer nole 38) 346 337
Auditor's remuneration (Refer note 39} 33 26
Travelling and conveyance 328 246
Consulling and professional fees 802 936
Site expenses 139 179
Danation 50 6
Printing and stationary 50 a7
Bank charges 95 32
Business promotion expenses 52 61
Provision towards foreseeable losses on contracts (net) - 1,036
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note 42) 64 53
Allowance for expected credit loss . 517 -
Miscellaneous expenses 66 M
4,096 4,140
Note 34: Exceptional items - (loss)/ gain
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Indirect taxes provision written back - 1,274
Provision written back to the extent no longer considered payable - 406
Trade receivables written off - (1,550)
Net exceptional gain/ (loss) - 130




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35: Current tax and deferred tax

(a) Income tax expense through the statement of profit and loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax:
Current tax on profits for the year 3,074 1,342
Deferred tax credit:
In respect of currenl year origination and reversal of temporary differences (284)| (228)
Total 2,790 1,114
(b} Income tax on other comprehensive income
Particul Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

D i tax credit / {exp )
Total

(c) Movement of income tax assets / (liabilities) - net

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
Opening balance (net) (238) 455
Taxes paid during the year (net} 1,908 649
|Income tax charge during the year (3,074) (1,342)
Closing balance (1,403)] (238)]
{d) Reconciliation of tax exp and the ting profit multiplied by India's applicable tax rate:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Accounting profit before income tax 10,275 5,398
Applicable income tax rate (in %) 2517% 2517%
Comp i ted lax exp 2,586 1,359
Tax effect of amount which are not (| le)l deductible in calculating taxable income 488 (18)
Deferred tax on originali | of temporary diffarences (284) (228)
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 2,790 1,114
Note 36: Earnings per equity share
|Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Dilutive potential equity shares

Basic eamings per share (in INR} [a/b]
Diluted earnings per share {in INR) [alc]
Face value per share (in INR)

Met profit attribulable to equity shareholders for the year [a] 7,485 4,284
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earnings per share [b] 2,98518 2,890,378
|Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted eamings per share [c] 2,98,518 2,890,378
2,507.40 1,475.39
2,507.40 1,475.39

1@0 1&




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (f ly, Vikran ing & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 37: Employee benefits

1. Short term employee benefits
All employee benefils payable wholly within twalve months of rendering the service are as short term employee benefils. Benefits such as salaries, incentives and allowances,
short terms compensaled absences, elc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised in the year in which the employee renders the related service.

2. Long term employee benefits
{I) Defined benefit plan

{a) Gratuity (unfunded)
The Company provides for gratuily for emplayees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for

gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retir ion is the employ last drawn basic salary per manth computed proportionately for 15 days salary mulliplied for the
number of years of service.
The ing tables the Is of net benefils exg ised in the of profil and loss and other comprehensive income and the amount recognised in

the balance sheel for the defined benefil plan.

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 Aprll 2022

Change in the p value of the defined benefit obligati
Opening defined benefil obligation 185 155 114
Interest cost 13 " 8
Current service cost 64 48 48
Benefits paid (18) (7) (3)
Actuarial {gain) loss on obligation 8 (21) {12)
Closing defined benefit obligation 253 185 155
A gnised in the bal sheel:
Present value of defined benefil obligation al the end of the year 253 185 155
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 253 185 155
Current 1 19 2
Non-current 222 166 153
Total 253 185 155
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Exp gnised in the stat t of profit and loss
Current service cost 64 48
Interest cost 13 1"
Net ised in the t of profit and loss 77 59
E gnised in the other P
Actuarial {gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligations 9 (21)
Net expense recognised in the total comprehensive income L] (21)
Breakup of acluarial loss/ (gain)
Due to change in financial assumplicns T {4)
Due to experience 1 {17)
Due to demographic assumplion 1 i
9 (21)
Actuarial assumptions used
Year ended Year ended As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Discount rate (% per annum) 7.11% 7.38% 7.19%
Salary growth rate (% per annum) 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Demographic assumptions used:
Year endad Year ended As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Mortality rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality Indian A d Lives Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Ultimate table (2012-14) Ullimate lable (2012-14) Ultimate table
Reliremant ane (in years) 58 58 58
Average fulure service (in years) 20 20 19
Altrifion rate (% per annum) 2.00% to 10.00% 1.00% 1.00%
These It were ped by the wilh the assi of ial i Discount factors are determined close to each year end by reference
to g W bonds of lc markels and that have tarms to maturity appm:umanng o Iha {erms of the related obligation. Other assumplions are based on
W's i The esli of fulure salary i tuation take account of inflation, by, p and ather rel I factors

such as supply and darnand in the employment market.




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (f; Iy, Vikran Eng: ing & Exim Private Limited)
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Sensitivity analysis

Tha reporied figures are
rate and attrition rale are given below. In p

itive to the acluarial The changes Io the defined benefil
ing the sensili lysi:

] of 1% from assumed discount rate, salary growth

has been

the present value of the defined benefit

using the pro]

unit credit

methad al the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet. The sensitivity analysis

Is based on a change in one while not ging all olher i This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefil obligation as itis
unlikely that the change in the assumptions woukl occur in isolation of one anclher since some of the assumplions may be co-relaled. The following table summarises the effects of
changes in these acluarial assumptions on the defined benefil fiability al year-end. There was no change in the and tions used in preparing the itivity analysis
from previous year,
Year ended Year ended As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022

[ by1% D by 1% by1% D by 1% | by 1% D by 1%
Discount rate
Change in the defined benefil obligation {22) 26 {21) 25 {18) 22
Salary growth rate
Change in the defined banefi obfigation 28 (24) 26 {22) 23 {19)
Attrition rate
Change in the defined benef abligation 1 U} 2 (2) 1 1)}
The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end as follows :

As al As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022

1st following year 3 19 2
2nd following year 9 2 38
3rd following year 28 3 48
4th following year 3 18 35
5th following year 12 21 39
6 years and onwards upto 10 years 73 38 39
Other information
Number of active members 674 508 a7
‘Weighted g tion of the i banefil obli for gratuily {in years) 15 19 20
Adjusted average future service (in years) 14 20 19

(h] Cumpnnsated absences
isan

d in the
in other prehensi

Tha p lowards
Amount of actuarial loss

funded defined benefit scheme. The obligation for leave enlillement is recognized in the same manner as gratuity.
of profit and loss for the year is INR 103 fakhs (31 March 2023 ! INR 28 lakhs).
income during the year is INR 19 lakhs (31 March 2023 : INR 8 lakhs).

Amount recognised in balance sheet as at 31 March 2024: INR 211 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 117 lakhs, 01 April 2022: INR 112 lakhs).

{ii) Defined contribution plan

The C pays fixed ibution to the provident fund, employee’s slate
individual empl This fund Is by the resp it authorities and the Comp
its fixed it which ara d as an exp in tha year thal related employee services are reoelved

The Company’s conlribution lo defined

plan qnised as employee benefit exp

Particulars

Ernpioyer's contribution towards Provident Fund (PF)
ibution lowards Employee’s Stale s C
Employers contribution towards Labour wellare fund (LWF)

poration (ESIC)

y has no legal or

is as below:

entities and labour welfare fum:l in relation to several state plans and insurances for

lo pay

in addition lo

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
229 171
0 ']
1] 1]
229 171




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 38: Leases

The Company's leased assets primarily consists of leases for office premises having different lease terms to conducl its business in the ordinary course.

The Company has discounted lease payments using the incremental borrowing rate for measuring lease liabilities and accordingly recognised ROU assets,
after adjusting any prepaid lease rentals.

The lease arrangements with lease term of 12 months or less, and the leases of low-value assets have been excluded from measurement of lease liability and
ROU assets. The lease payments related to these arrangements are charged to statement of profit and loss under the respective head.

The Company does not have any major lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

(i) Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than twelve months of lease term on the date of initial
application.

(i) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

Right-of-use assets:
(i) The net carrying value of right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2024 amounts to INR 95 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 181 lakhs and 01 April 2022: INR 61
lakhs) and the movement thereof has been disclosed separately in note 6 lo the financial statements.

Lease liabilities:

(i) The movement in lease liabilities is as follows :

Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Opening balance 170 64 E
Add : Addition during the year - 180 a8
Add : Interest on lease liabilities ] 8 6
Less : Payment of lease liabilities (104) (80) (41)
Add : Other adjustments {1} (2) 4
Closing balance T4 170 64
MNon current i} 75 27
Current 36 95 37

(ii) The table below provides details regarding the coniractual maturilies of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
0-1 year 50 104 a1

1-5 years 29 80 27
5 years and above -

2. The Company has recognised the following in the statement of profit and loss:

(i) Depreciation expense from right-of-use assets of INR 86 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 77 lakhs) (Refer nole 32).

(i) Interest on lease liabilities of INR 9 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 8 lakhs (Refer note 31).

{iii) Expense amounting to INR 998 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 757 lakhs) related to leases of low-value assets and leases wilh less than twelve months of
lease term. These have been included under plant and machinery, vehicle hire charges and rent expenses (Refer notes 29 and 33),

Note 39 : Auditor's remuneration (excluding goods and service tax)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As auditor:
Statutory audit 30 v
Tax audil 3 3
Certifications } s
33 26

Note: Payment for the year ended 31 March 2023 represent fee paid to erstwhile auditor.




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Note 40: Contingent liabilities and commitments
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022

i) Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

a) Income tax demand in respect of earlier years under dispute® 415 413 422
b) Goods and service tax demand in respect of earlier years under dispute* 6,036 5,364 -
¢) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 15 15 15

*Future cash outflows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various forums / authorilies. The
management, based on their assessment, does not expect these claims to succeed and accordingly, no provision has been recognised in the financial
statements. These amount represents gross demand raised by the authorities and the amount paid under protest is nol charged to the statement of profit and
loss by the Company.

d) During 2021-22, a case was filed by a Government investigation agency alleging involvement of the Company, its two employees and a public officer for
alleged involvement with respect to a coniract for securing undue favors. The Company is in the process of filing an application with the appropriate forum for
dropping this matter against the company, due lo its non-involvement and absence of any charges being framed against it till date.

ii) Outstanding bank guarantees As at As at As at
3 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Bank guarantees given by the Company on behalf of related party - 1 83
(to the extent of amount outstanding)
- 1 83
As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

iii) Commitments
Estimated amount of conlracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not provided for (net - - 8
of advances)




Vikran Engineering Private Limited (fermerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Motes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless ctherwise statad)

Note 41: Related party disclosure
(Disclosed to the extenl i have taken place and where control exist).

A) Names of related parties

i) Key fal p | (KMP) Di

Mr. Rakesh A - Chai and ging Direclor (CMD) and Promaler
Mr. Avinash Markhedkar - Direclor

Mr. Nakul Markhedkar - Additional Director (w.e.1. 01 February 2024)

Mr. Ashish Bahatey - Chisf Financial Officer (w.e.l. 21 August 2023)

Mrs, Kajal Rakholiya - Company Secrelary (w.e.f. 06 May 2024)

ii) Relatives of Key gerlal p (KMP)
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar - Wife of CMD
Mr, Vipul Markhedkar - Son of CMD

ii) Entities having significant influence over the Company (Refer note 55)
Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limiled (Promoter)
Farista Financial Consullants Private Limited (Promoter)

iv) Entities over which Directors/KMP have significant influence

SEU India Performance Excellence LLP

Vikran Engineering & Exim Privale Limiled - Employees Group Gratuity Fund
Swamayug Developars LLP

Rakesh Markhedkar HUF

Vikran Global Infraprojects Private Limited

B} Transactions with related parties :

Particulars Year ended Year anded
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

1(A). Sub-contracting charges

SEU India Performance Excellence LLP 203 B
1(8). fram op (including billing)
Swarnayug Developers LLP * 915 =
2. Dividend paid
Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limiled 196 51
Farista Financial Consultants Private Limited 195 51
Mr. Rakash Markhedkar 1 (1]
3. Rent paid *
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar & 8
4, LoanfAdvance taken:
Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar 297 133
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar 401 50
Mr. Makul Markhedkar a4 22
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar T 13
Rakesh Markhedkar HUF 105 180
Vikran Global Infraprojects Private Limited - 205
5. LoanfAdvance repaid:
Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar 297 133
Mrs, Kanchan Markhedkar 401 50
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar 94 22
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar 177 13
Rakesh Markhedkar HUF 105 180
Vikran Global Infraprojects Privale Limited # 2,119 130
6. Inlerest expense:
Mr, Rakesh Markhedkar 14 10
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar n 2
Mr. Makul Markhedkar a [i]
M. Vipul Markhedkar 10 1
Rakesh Markhedkar HUF 15 13
Vikran Global Infraprojects Private Limited 148 182
7. Ralimb tof i d by
Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar 8 1
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar 16 1
Mr. Makul Markhedkar 4 1
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar 7 [
Mr. Avinash Markhedkar 1 5
8. semaont of exp i on behalf of
Mr. Avinash Markhedkar = 0
9. Remuneration to KMP and their relatives
Mr, Rakesh Markhedkar 246 1495
Mr, Avinash Markhadkar &7 64
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar 253 185
Mr, Makul Markhedkar 199 159
M. Vipul Markhedkar 67 3z
Mr. Ashish Bahtey 42 -
10, Salary advance given
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar = 3

* The figures are based on d and does not include the impact of Ind AS.
# Amounl for year ended 31 march 2024 includes INR 794 lakhs settled through issue of equily shares.
* As per contractual arrangement, billing is done amounting to INR 915 lakhs during the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 Mil).
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C) Balances outstanding at the year-end

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022

Trade payables

SEU India Performance Excellence LLP 10 2 1
Trade receivables

Swarnayug Developers LLP 166 - -
Other financial assets

Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited Employees Group Gratuily 0 0 0
Borrowings

Vikran Global Infraprojects Privale Limited - 1,972 1,701
Rakesh Markhedkar HUF - 13 -

Salary payable

Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar 7 B -
Mr. Avinash Markhedkar 2 14 »
Mrs. Kanchan Markhedkar ] 41 -
Mr. Nakul Markhedkar 6 36 -
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar 6 - -
Mr. Ashish Bahety 4 - -
Advance recoverable

Mr. Rakesh Markhedkar - - 4
Mr. Vipul Markhedkar ; 3 ~
Outstanding g given against credit facilities extended to:

\fikran Global Infraprojects Private Limited - 1 83
Notes:

(i) Transactions wilh related parlies are in compliance with Seclion 188 of the Act, as applicable. The outslanding balances al year end are unsecured and
due to be settled for consideration in cash / cash equivalent.

{if) Following related parties have provided corporate guarantee/personal guarantee to the bankers towards cash credil facilities and working capital term
loans availed by the Company as disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

- Deb Suppliers & Traders Private Limited

- Farista Financial Consultants Privale Limited

- Rakesh Markhedkar

- Avinash Markhedkar

- Kanchan Markhedkar

- Nakul Markhedkar

- Viipul Markhedkar

(iii) The remuneration to the KMPs does not includes the provision made for gratuily and compensated absences, as they are delermined on an actuarial
basis for the Company as a whole.

(iv) Subsequent to 31 March 2024, the Company has appointed a Whole Time Company Secretary w.e.f. 06 May 2024,

(v) The Company execules certain projects through special purpose vehicles (SPV) which are nol body corporales. These SPVs are treated as an exlension

of the Company itself as in substance the Company assumes all the risk and rewards related to such amangements including managing operations of such
projects. Hences such SPVs are nol considered as related party for disclosure purpose in this note.
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42 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

ing & Exim Private Limited)

hold, needs lo spend al least 2% of ils average net profil for the immediately preceding three

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Acl"), a Company, ting the

bility it

financial years on CSR activities. A CSR Committee has been formed by the Company as per the Act. Following are the details required as per the Acl.

Details of CSR activities undertak

by the C

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

a) Gross amount required Lo be spent during the year 64 53
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spen! during the year 64 53
¢) Amount spent during the year:

i) Construction/acquisition of any assel - -

ii) On purposes olher than (i) above 64 53
Total it pent - -

Notes :
i) Mature of CSR activities includes social welfare, economic activities for education of poor disable children and women, vocational training child develof prag

iy The Company does not have any ongoing projects as al the end of reporting periods.
iiij During the year, there is no related party iransaclion in relation to CSR expenditure.

iv) There is no unspent amount of CSR activilies as at the end of reporting pericds.

43 Segment information

, etc.

The Company is principally engaged in a single business segment viz. Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) services. The Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)

monitor and review the operating result of the Company prepared on the basis of financial inf tion of EPC
Company's entire business falls under this one operational segment.
(a) Revenue from sale of services on a geographic basis:
Year ended Year ended
|Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
India 77,669 52,431
Outside India - =
Total 77,669 52,431
{b) Revenue from sale of services derived from major customers is as follows:
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Revenue from top cuslomer
Revenue from top three cuslomers

28,269
64,382

13,469
28,157

(c) For the year ended 31 March 2024, three (31 March 2023 three) cuslomers, individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue from operations.

(d) Non-current assets*

As at As at As at
EAAE 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
India 1,694 1,975 1,849
Outside India - = 4
* Excluding financial assets and lax assets.
44 Dividend
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Dividend on equity shares paid during the year:
Final dividend for the previous year pald in current year

392

102

392

102

as a whole, Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 "Operaling Segments®, the

The Board of Directors of lhe Company, al their meeting held on 07 August 2024, have recommended a dividend of INR 105 per share on face value of INR 10 each for the financial year ended 31
March 2024. The same is subject to approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeling of the Company and hence is nol recognized as a liability.

The dividend paid by the Company and dividend declared/proposed by the Board of Directors, is in compliance with the Section 123 of Acl.

45 Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’) relating to employee benefits during

and post

ployment

d Presidential assent in Seplember 2020. The Code has been

published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has nol been nolified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes inlo Bfft‘Ect and

will record any related impact in the period in which the Code becomes effective.




Vikran Engineering Private Limited {formarly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Privato Limited)
HNotes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(AN amounts in INR lakhs, unless othersise stated)

46

(i)

(i)

Fair value measurements

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assels and liabililies are included at the amount thal would be recelved to sell an assat or paid to Iransfer a liability in an ordery ransactlion between marked participant at the
measurement date,

This seclion explains the jud: and meade in the fair values of the financial instruments thal are {a) recognised and measured al fair value and (b) measured al amordised cosl and
for which fair values are disclosed in the financial Tao provide an indicalion aboul the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial Instruments into
ha three levels p under (he ing standard. An ion of aach lavel follows undarneath the table.

Leval 1 : Prices (unadjusied) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments thal are nol raded in an active markel is using hnlques which imise the use of ob ble market data and rely as lillle as possible
on enlity-specific estimates. I all significant inputs required 1o falr value an | are ot ble, the is included in lavel 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is nol based on chservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Valuatls hinls used to fair value

Specific valualion lechniques used to value financial instruments include:
- the use of quoted markel prices or dealer queles for similar instruments
- the usa of discountad cash flow for fair value at amortised cost

Assels and which are at i cost for which fair values are disclosed
As at 31 March 2024
Carrying value Fair Value
Partlculars Financial assals /|
: liabilities at fair
Amortlsed cost value through profit Tolal carrylng value Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total
or loss (FVTPL)
|[Financial assats
Investment in mutual funds % %0 50 a0 - - 90
Tradn recelvablas 46,390 - 46,390 - - - -
(Cash and cash equivalonls B = a - - - -
(Othar bank balances 4,900 - 4,900 = S - -
(Other financial assals 3,766 - 3,766 - - - =
Financial llabilities
Long lerm borrowings 1,070 - 1,070 - = = -
Short term borrowings 17,269 - 17,269 . = B -
Lease liabilitias T4 - 74 . - - -
Trade payables 29,692 - 29,692 - - - -
Other financial liahililies 400 = 409 - - - S

As at 31 March 2023

Carrying valus Falr value
Amortised cost Financial assets |

Particulars Habilities at fair

“::'l::‘"'gh :L‘;m Tolal carrying value Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Lavel 3 Total
Financial assets
Investmant in mutual funds - 81 a1 #1 - - 8
Trada receivables 36,991 - 36,991 - * - -
(Cash and cash aquivalenls 12 . 12 - - = =
(Other bank balances 1.430 - 1,430 - = * -
(Other financizl assels 5,208 - 5,208 - - - -
Financial flabllities
Long term bomowings 3,650 - 3,650 - - - -
Shaort term bomowings 11,841 - 11,841 - - = =
Lease Habilites 170 - 170 - - - -
Trade payables 29,322 - 29,322 - - - 5
(Other financial liabiliies 390 - 390 - - - -

As at 01 April 2022

Carrylng valua Falr valua
Amortised cost Financial assets |
|Particulars liabilitles at fair
wvalue through profit
or loss (FVTPL) Total carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financlal assets

Investment In mulual funds - k] 38 a9 - - LY
| Trada recaivables 36,401 - 36,403 - - - =
Cash and cash equivalenls 14 = 14 ~ = - .
Other bank balances 2342 - 2,342 - - - &
Diher inanclal assets 2,364 - 2,364 * . — *
Financial liabilities

Long lerm borrowings 3,685 - 3,685 - - - =
Shorl term barowings B, 186 - 8,186 - = - -
Lease liabilitias 64 = B4 - - - -
Trade payables 21,617 - 21617 - - - -
Other financial liabiliies \E] - 14 - - - -

Falr value of assets and at cosl

The carrying amounls of rade receivable, cash and cash equivalents, cther bank balances, security deposils, rade payables and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the sama as thair fair
values, due to their shor term nature.

Falr value of financial assels moasured at FVTPL

The fair values of investiments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset valus {NAV') as slaled by the issuers of these mulual fund unils in the p
Thare are no transfers in elther level during the reporling periods.

There are no financial assets/ liabilities which are measured al fair value through other comprehensive income.
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47 Financial risk management

The Company activilies expose il to inlerest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial |

the C

/s risk

tis carfied out by a

corporate treasury and corporale finance department under policies approved by he board of directors and top management. The Company s treasury identifies, evaluates and mitigates financial risks in
close cooperation wilh the Company's oparating units. The board pravides guidance for overall the risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas.

This note explains the sources of risk which the enlity is primarily exposed to and how the enlity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Credil risk

Credit risk is lhe nsk of financial Icss ansmg fram counterparty failure to repay or service dues according to the | terms and « Credit risk er of both, the direct risk of default
and the risk of d ion of as well as ion of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limils and credit worthiness of the cuslomer on conlinuous basis to whom the
credit has been granted after oblaini v app Is for credil. The financial instruments that are subject to concentralion of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables and cash and bank
equivalents.

Bank deposits are placed wilh repuled banks / financial instilulions. Hence, there is no significant credil risk on such fixed deposils. Mulual fund investments are made in plans of renowned assel
management company only. The credit risk lated with bank, ily di its and multual fund investmenls is relatively low.

Other financlal assels includes dep le, interest d on deposits and olher ivables. These bles are on a periodic basis for any signi

recoverability of dues and provision is created accordingly.

Trade ivables are lypically un d. Credit risk on lrade receivables is limiled as the Company's customer base substantially includes government promoted underiakings and public sector
underlakings. Also, generally the company does not enter inlo sales transaction with customers having credil loss history. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis with the
result that the Company’s exposure lo bad debls is not significant. The portion of the pay ined by the cust until final I is not idered a financing component
since itis usually intended to provide customer wilh a form of security for C 'S ining perft as specified under the conlract, which is consistent with the industry practice. The Company
does not require collateral in respect of its trade b i lysls is performed al each rling date using a p malrix lo ECL. The p

past due. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted uubmme‘ the time value of money and reasonable and supporiable information hat is available at the repcu‘ling date aboul past evenis, current
conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions, if any. In case of dispuled trade bles, the Comy individual credit risk assessment and creales expected credil loss allowance
(ECL) based on internal assessment for such cases.

The fi g table provides inf tion aboul the ECL rate for trade receivables :

Ageing bracket of trade receivables past due date As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023 | As at 01 April 2022

Upta 90 days 0.10% to 1.00% 0.10% to 1.00% 0.10% to 1.00%

91 to 180 days 2.50% to 4.50% 2.00% 1o 4.00% 2.00% to 4.00%

181 to 365 days 8.00% to 12.00% 8.00% to 11.00% 8.00% to 11.00%

More than 365 days 25.00% to 80.00% 25.00% lo 80.00% 25.00% to 80.00%

a) For iliation of loss all on lrade ivables, refer note 13.1.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk implies ining cash and ketable securities and the availability of funding to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying

L risk of non-

rales are based on days

businesses, Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances available lo meel the working capilal requirements. Management monilors rolling forecasts of the

Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

The Company’s principal sources of liquidily are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow thal is generaled from

The Ci

current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and mainlains adequate source of funding.

The Company also participates in supply chain financing arrangement (SCF) which under which suppliers may elect to receive early payment of their invoice from by factoring thelr receivables.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

beli that the

g capital is

o meet ils

The table below provides details regarding the ilies of significant financial liabilities at the reporiing date based on the i pay Refer note 38 for
contractual maturities of lease liabilities.
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying amount C | maturities
Particulars A it Repayable on d d Upto 1 year Between 1-3 years | Beyond 3 years Total
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18,339 11,697 5,602 830 220 18,339
Trade payables® 29,692 - 27,124 2,568 - 29,692
Other financial fiabilities 409 - 409 - - 409
Total 48,441 11,697 33,125 3,398 220 48,440
As at 31 March 2023 Carrying amount Contractual maturities
I Amount Repayable on demand Upto 1 year Between 1-3 years | Beyond 3 years Total
Financlal liabilities
Borrowings 15,491 8,390 3,452 3429 220 15,491
Trade payables* 29,322 - 27,235 2,087 - 20,322
Other financial liabilities 390 - 263 = 263
Total 45,203 8,390 30,950 5516 220 45,076
As at 01 April 2022 Carrying amount Contraciual maturities
Particulars Amount Repayable on demand Upto 1 year Between 1 - 3 years | Beyond 3 years Total
F ial liabilities
Borrowings 11,871 6,451 1,736 3,154 531 11,872
Trade payables* 21,617 - 19,262 2,355 - 21,617
Other financial liabililies 14 - 14 - - 14
Total 33,502 6,451 21,012 5,509 531 33,503
* In the bal sheet, frade payables are classified based on the operating cycle of the Company.
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c

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equily prices will affect the Companfs income or the value of its heldings of fi | instr The objeclive of markel
risk management is to manage and conlrol markel risk exp within acceptabl while optimising the return, The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables
on the carrying value of posl-employ i benefil obligations provisions and on the ncn-ﬁnancial assels and Ilabululpes The sensitivity of the relevant profil and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes
in respective market risks.

Interest rate risk is the risk thal the fair value or the future cash Nows of a financial instrument will Nuctuate because of changes in market inlerest rate risks. The Company's exp {o risk of changes in

market interest rates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations. For the Company the interest risk arises mainly from interest bearing borrowings which are at ﬂoaling interest rates. To miligate

interest rate risk, the Company closely monitors markel interest and oplimise borrowing mix / compositian.

- Interest rate exposure

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing lo interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars Azt Asat e al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Variable rate borrowing 15,193 14,740 11,227
Fixed rate borrowings 3,146 752 645
Total 18,339 15,491 11,872
- Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 50 bps in interest rates would have following impact on profil before lax and equity (holding all olher variables constant)

i As at As at As at
Famicilges 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
50 bps increase would decrease the profil before tax/equity by* (76)) (74) (56)

|50 bps decrease would increase the profit before taxfequity by* 76 74 56

* Sensilivity Is calculated based on the assumplion that amount oulstanding as at reporting dales were ulilised during the period.

Mutual fund price risk

The value of unquoted mutual fund investmenls measured al fair value through profit and loss as al 31 March 2024 is INR 90 lakhs (31 March 2023 INR 81 lakhs, 01 April 2022: INR 39 lakhs). A 10%
change in value for year ended 31 March 2024 would resull in an impact of INR 9 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 8 lakhs, 01 April 2022: INR 4 lakhs) on profit before tax and other equity (holding all other

variables constant).

Capital management

The Company's objeclives when managing capital are lo
1. Safeguard their ability lo continue as a going concem, so that they can conlinue to provide returns for shareholders
2. Maintain an optimal capital structure o reduce the cost of capital.

and benefits for other

s, and

In erder to maintain or adjust the capital struclure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends pald lo shareholders, return capilal lo shareholders, Issue new shares, reduce debl or sell assels.

The Company maintains ils capital struclure and makes adjustments, if required in the light of changes in economic conditions and the r

of the fi i1

Is. G with athers in the

industry, the Company monilors ils capital using the gearing ratio which is nel debt divided by equily and intends to manage optimal gearing ratios. In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s

capilal management, amongst other things, aims lo ensure thal it meels financial l i lo the be

The gearing ratios are as follows:

that define the capital struclure requirements.

As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023 | As at 01 April
Particulars 2022
Nel debt (Total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents) 18,331 15479 11,857
Total equity 29,129 13,113 8,821
Capital gearing ratio 0.63 1.18 1.33
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Note 49: Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 101 - "First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard"

First Ind AS Financial statements

These financial statements, as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, are the first financial slatemenls which have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time notified
under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for year ended on 31
March 2024, together with he comparative period dala as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, as described in the material accounting policies hence not
comparable with the statutory financial statements signed for the comparative period. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was
prepared as at 01 April 2022, the Company’s date of transilion, to Ind AS, This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its earlier
financial stalements, including the balance sheet as at 01 April 2022 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023,

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed
Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters cerlain exemplions from the retrospeclive application of certain requirements under Ind AS. Set out below are the applicable Ind AS
101 optional exemption and mandatory exemption applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

A.1Ind AS optional exemptions:

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties

Ind AS 101 permils a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as
at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use thal as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments
for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemplion can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 - Intangible Assets and investment properties covered under
Ind AS 40 - Invesiment properties.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangibles assests and investment properties at the carrying value under the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date transilion to Ind AS.

Fair value measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition
Ind AS 109 requires fair value measurement, retrospectively, however an entity may apply the requirements of Ind AS 109 prospectively to transaclions entered into on
or after the date of transition to Ind AS. Accordingly, the Company has opted such exemption.

A.2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions:

A.2.1 Estimates

The estimates as at 01 April 2022 and as at 31 March 2023 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to
reflect differences, if any in accounting policies) apart from impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model where the application of previous
GAAP did not require such estimation.

The estimates used by the Company fo present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions as at 01 April 2022, the date of transition to Ind AS and as at
31 March 2023.

A.2.2 Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entily 1o assess classificalion and measurement of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances thal exist at the date of transition to
Ind AS. Financial assets can be measured using effective interest method by assessing ils contractual cash flow characteristics only on the basis of facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition and if it is impraclicable to assess the use of effective interest method, fair value of financial asset at the date of transition
shall be the new carrying amount of that assel. The measurement exemption applies for financial liabilities as well.

A.2.3 Impairment of financial assets
Ind AS 101 provides relaxation from applying the impairment related requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively.

At the date of transition, the Company has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the
date that financial instruments were initially recognised and compare that to the credit risk at the date of transition to Ind AS. Similarly the Company has recognized a
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date until that financial instrument is de-recognised.

A.2.4 Derecognition of fir ial ts and fi ial liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transitions to
Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the entity's choosing,
provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past Iransaclions was obtained at the time
of initially accounting for those Iransactions.

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 108 prospectively from date of transition to Ind AS.

A.2.5 Impact of application of lease accounting under Ind AS 116
Under Ind AS, the Company has recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of lhe remaining lease payments, and right-of-use (ROU) asset at an amount
equal to lease liability (adjusted for any related prepayments and present value of security deposits), the Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective

approach.
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B. Reconciliation of equity and total prehensive income bet 1 previous GAAP and Ind AS
The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from 01 April 2022, Accordingly the impact of lransition has been provided in the opening reserves as al 01 April 2022 and
all the periods presented have been restated accordingly. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

B.1 Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2023 and 01 April 2022

Particulars Motes to first time As at As at
adoption 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Equity as per previous GAAP 13,497 9,294
Adjustments
Impact of application of lease accounting under Ind AS 116 B.3.1 (6) (1)
Impact of allowance for expecled credit losses B.3.2 (503) (503)
Impact on account of fair value of mutual fund investments B.3.4 1 3
Tax effect on above adjusiments 124 128
Total adjustment (384) (373)
Equity as per Ind AS framework 13,113 8,921

B.2 Reconciliation of net profit after tax as per previous GAAP to total compref income under Ind AS

Particulars Notes to first time Year ended
adoption 31 March 2023
Net profit after tax as per previous GAAP 4,305
Adjustments
Impact of application of lease accounting under Ind AS 116 B.31 (6)
Impact of provision for expected credit losses B.3.2 -
Impact on account of remeasurement of post employment benefil obligation B.3.3 (13)
Impact on account of fair value of mutual fund investments B34 2
Tax effect on above adjustments (4)
Total adjustments (21}
Net profil after tax as per Ind AS 4,284
Other comprehensive income as per Ind AS 10
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS framework 4,204

B.3 : Notes to first time adoption of Ind AS

1. Impact of accounting under Ind AS 116 'Leases’

Under Ind AS, the Company has recognised a lease liability measured at the presenl value of the remaining lease payments, and right-of-use (ROU) asset at an amount
equal to lease liability (adjusted for any related prepayments, and present value of security deposits). The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified relrospective
approach.

2. Allowance as per expected credit loss model
Under previous GAAP, the Company created provision of doubtful debls and advances based on the incurred credit loss model. Under Ind AS, provision has been
determined based on expected credit loss model (ECL) on all financial assets (other lhan those measured at fair value).

3.R ement of post-employ t benefit obligations - gratuity and compensated absences

Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurement were forming part of the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Under Ind AS, remeasurement i.e. actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

4. R Ir t of invest ts in mutual funds
Under the previous GAAP, investments in mutual fund units were accounted at cost. Under Ind AS, these investments have been recognised at FVTPL.

C : Others
Pursuant to changes described above on adoplion of Ind AS, corresponding effect has been given in the operating, investing and financing activity in the statement of
cash flows as well, The transition lo Ind AS did nol effecl the net increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalenls.

D. This is the first year of Ind AS adoption for the Company. The figures for lhe previous year have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever necessary lo conform to the
current year's presentation.
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50 : Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

a) Reconciliation of revenue from sale of services with the contracted price

Year ended Year ended
‘ RAROUINS 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contracted price 78,186 53,117
Less: Variable consideration (517) (685)
| |Revenue from sale of services 77,669 52,432
i b) Revenue based on performance obligations
|
Year ended Year ended
Rarticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As services are rendered (over the period of time) 77,669 52,432

Related parties* 550 -
Others 77,118 52,431
* As per contractual arrangement, billing is done amounting to INR 915 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Nil)
which has been disclosed in lransaction with related parties.

d) Contract balances

As at As at As at

Particiars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 01 April 2022

Trade receivables (net carrying value) 46,390 36,991 36,403
Contract assels (unbilled work in progress) 28,916 19,464 429
Advance from customers 201 1,290 1,798
Contract liability* 14,759 8,731 2,794

* Revenue recognised during the year from contract liability is INR 8,731 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 2,794 lakhs).

e) Movement in contract assets and contract liability

Contract liability
Particulars Contract and customer
assets
advances
Balance as on 01 April 2022 429 4,592
MNet increase/ (decrease) 19,035 5429
|Balance as on 31 March 2023 19,464 10,021
Net Increase/ (decrease) 9452 4,939

Balance as on 31 March 2024 28,916 14,960

Note: Increase in conlract assets is primarily due to higher revenue recognition as compared to progress billing during the year in certain projects, whereas
increase in contract liabilities is due to higher prog billing as pared to recognition during the year in certain other projects.

f} Cost to obtain or fulfil the contract:
(i) Amount of amoriisation recognised in Slatement of Profit and Loss during the year : Nil (31 March 2023: Nil).
(i) Amount recognised as contract assets in relation to cost incurred for obtaining conlract as at 31 March 2024 : Nil (31 March 2023: Nil).

g) In the | course of busil the payment terms conlractually agreed with the customers ranges from 45 lo 60 days excepl retention monies which are
due after the completion of the project as per the terms of contract.

|
Upon pletion of services (al a point in time) - =
c) Recognised revenue earned from:
Year ended Year ended
faicaine 31 March 2024 31 March 2023



Vikran Engineering Private Limited (formerly, Vikran Engineering & Exim Private Limited)
Notes to the financial stataments as at and for the yoar ended 31 March 2024
(Al amaunis in INR lakhs, unless othervise staled)

51 Key analylical ratlos (lo the exlent applicable) :

Particulars Numarator Denominalor 3 March 2024 3 March 2023 /' E pl ion for in ratio by
imore than 25%
Current ralio Current assels Current liabllities 137 147 17.37% [Not applicable
Debl equity ralie [Bomowings {curent and non currant) Tatal equity 0.63 1.18 -46.71%|The favorable varfance is due loj

increase in share capital issued

during the year , however there was
‘ slight increase in the borrowings as
i

compared o equity.

Debl service coverage ralio Nel profil befora lax + depreciation, and|Principal and inlerest repayment of 0.63 0.44 42.86%|Increase is  pamarily because in|
|lemoriisation  + interest expense onllong-lerm berrowings cumrenl year, the Company’s profit has
g I as d lo !
yoaar,
Relum on equily (ROE) Nel profit after laxes Average shareholders’ equity 35.44% 38.89% -B.87%|Not applicable
Inventory lumover ralio Sale of service Averaga invenlory 18.32 15.61 17.38%|Not applicabla
Trade receivable lurnover ralic [Revenue from operalions, Average lrade receivables 1.89| 1.43] 31.95%|Increase is becavse of increase in|
revenus from operalions in the curren
year.
Trade payables turnover ratio [Cost of malerial consumed + Project|Average iade payable 3.75) 2,85 31.55%|Increase 1s because of increase in|
related expanse in current year.
Net capilal umaover ratio Revenus Working capital {Cument assels| 3.25 5.80| -43.95%|Dacrease is primarily due to increase
less current liabililias) in  working capltal higher  lhan|

increase in revenue from operations.

Nat profil ralio Nel profit after tax Revenue from operalions 9.46% B.10% 16.82% (Not appiicable
Retumn on capital employed (ROCE) Eamings bafare interast and laxes Capital employed (Tolal equity as| 46.25%| 61.70% -25.03% jon is mainly on account of]
per balance sheat) increase in net assetsiiolal equity of

the Company In the current year dug|
lo increase in share capital and|

Retum on investment Nel profit afler laxes Total assels 7.80% B.01%) 29.69%|Increass is because of increase in nal)
profil after laxes in the current year,

52 Other y inf Hon as per Schedule 1l to the Act
{i) The Company does nol have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or panding againsl the Company for holding any Benami property.
{ii) The Company does nol have any charges or salisfaction which is yal to be regi: d with Regl of Companies beyond the slatutory perdod.
{Hiiy The Company has nol traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency during the reporling periods.
{iv) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded In the books of 1hal has been o as Income during Ihe year in ihe lax assessments under ihe Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,
search or survey or any other ralevanl provisions of ihe Incoma Tax Act, 1961.
{v) The Company has complied wilh the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

{vi} Thera are no lons or Bal: with slruck off P as al and for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 except below:
[Name of Company [Nature of transactions 31 March 2024 —rllalinllnhip 31 March 2023 [Relationship
[Ewsels Logistics Services India Privala  |Payables (0)| Vendar 0 | Vendor
Lorshl Enterprises Private Limiled Payables 0 | Vendor 0 | Vendor
Taneesh Travel And Tours Private Payables {0} Vendar 0 | Vendor
Kedar Badii Construction Private Limdted® |Payables 3 | Vendor 2 | Vendor
, Rishabh Human Resource Solution Payables 4 | Vendor 0 | Vendor
Private Limited"
TMSY Paripumam Infrastructure (OPC)  (Payables 1 | Vendor (0)] Vendor
Privale Limited®
Unive Orbital Privale Limited [Payables 3 | Vendor 1| Vendor
Vidhudi Engineering India Privale Limited (Payables 0 | Vendar 0 | Vandor
Plinth Construction Private Limited Payables 0 | Vendor 0 | Vendor
[ Jyotipriya Infralech Private Limited Payables 1 | Vendor 0 | Vendor

* Balance writlan back
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53 The Company has nol received any fund from any person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign enlilies (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wriling or
otherwise) that the Company shall :
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ullimate Beneficiaries); or
(if) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimale Beneficiaries.

54 The Company has nol advanced or loaned or invesled funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign enlilies (intermediaries) wilh the understanding (whether
recorded in wriling or olherwise) that the intermediary shall :

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlilies identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Company ( Ullimate B iarias); or
(il) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

55 The Board of Directors of the Company, at their meating held on 18 Di ber 2021, had app d Ihe scheme of Ig ion of the Company with Farista Financials
Consultants Private Limited and Deb Suppliers and Traders Private Limited under Seclion 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act
read with Companies (Compromi Arr s and Amal lion) Rules, 2016 (‘the Merger'). The Company has filed petition with National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT}, Mumbai Bench in relation lo the merger, p to applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013. The aforesaid sct isp ly subject to isite statul
and regulatory approvals, as applicable.

56 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has pr ibed a new requi 1 for companies under the proviso o Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserled by the

Companies (Accounls) Amendment Rules, 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining ils books of account, shall use only such accounling
software which has a fealure of recording audit trail of each and every Iransaction, crealing an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when
such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail is nol disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which Is operated by a third parly software service provider which has a feature of recording
audil trail (edil log) facility and the same has operated Ihroughout the year for all relevant transaclions recorded in the software at an apy ion level. The ‘Independ;
Service Auditor's Assurance Report on the Description of Controls, their Design and Operating Effectiveness’ (' Type 2 report’ issued in accordance with ISAE 3402, Assurance
Reporis on Conlrols al a Service O isation) does not provide any infi tion on the audit trail feature at database level for the said accounting software. Further, the audit
{rail fealure is not lampered with, where such feature is enabled.

These are the notes to the financial stalements referred to in our report of even dale
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